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SUBJECT: DEFENSE HEALTH AGENCY (DHA) - NRC INS- October 7, 2021, Shawn Seeley of 

this office conducted a special remote inspection of your activities performed under your NRC 
License No. 45-35423-01.  The inspector discussed the inspection findings with COL Ricardo 
Reyes, telephonically, on November 18, 2021. 
 
Based on the results of this inspection, the NRC determined that two apparent violations of 
NRC requirements occurred and are being considered for escalated enforcement action in 
accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy.  The current Enforcement Policy is included on 
the NRC’s Web site at 

https://www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/regulatory/enforcement/enforce-
pol.html.  The first apparent violation is related to the failure to secure licensed material as 
required by 10 CFR 20.1802.  Specifically, on May 13, 2021, staff at the Defense Health 
Agency’s (DHA) permittee facility located at Naval Medical Center San Diego lost four 
brachytherapy seeds, each containing 0.26 mCi of iodine-125, as described in Event 
Notification #55262.  The second apparent violation involved the failure to immediately report 
any lost, stolen, or missing licensed material in an aggregate quantity equal to or greater than 
1,000 times the quantity specified in appendix C to part 20 under such circumstances that it 
appears to the licensee that an exposure could result to persons in unrestricted areas, by 
contacting the NRC Headquarters Operations Officer (HOO), as required by 10 CFR 
20.2201(a).  Namely, DHA informed the NRC HOO about the May 13 incident on May 17, 
2021.  The circumstances surrounding these apparent violations, the significance of the 
issues, and the need for lasting and effective corrective actions were discussed with 
members of your staff at the inspection exit meeting on November 18, 2021. 
 
Since the NRC has not made a final determination in this matter, a Notice of Violation is not 
being issued at this time.  Please be advised that the number and 

https://www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/regulatory/enforcement/enforce-pol.html
https://www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/regulatory/enforcement/enforce-pol.html
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significance of the issue, and the need for lasting and effective corrective actions were 
discussed with you during the November 18

mailto:anne.defrancisco@nrc.gov.
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In lieu of providing this written response, you may choose to provide your perspective on this 
matter, including the significance, cause, and corrective actions, as well as any other 
information that you believe the NRC should take into consideration by:  (1) requesting a PEC 
to meet with the NRC and provide your views in person; or (2) requesting Alternative Dispute 
Resolution (ADR). 
 
If you choose to request a PEC, the meeting should be held within 30 days of the date of this 
letter, although this timeframe may be extended due to impacts from COVID-19.  The 
conference will include an opportunity for you to provide your perspective on these matters 
and any other information that you believe the NRC should take into consideration before 
making an enforcement decision.  The topics discussed during the PEC may include 
information to determine whether a violation occurred, information to determine the 
significance of a viormatinform cP 

http://www.nrc.gov/about-%20nrc/regulatory/enforcement/adr.html
mailto:anne.defrancisco@nrc.gov
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html
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If you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact Shawn Seeley of my staff 
at  shawn.seeley@nrc.gov.  
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 

Blake Welling, Director 
Division of Radiological Safety and Security 
Region I 

 
 
Docket No. 030-39046 
License No. 45-35423-01 
 
Enclosures: 
1. Inspection Report No. 03039046/2021002  
2. NRC Information Notice 96-28 
 
cc w/Encl: COL Ricardo A. Reyes, Ph.D., RSO 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Defense Health Agency (DHA)  
NRC Inspection Report No. 03039046/2021002 

 
On May 17, 2021, the NRC initiated an announced reactive inspection to review the organization 
and scope of activities performed under the Defense Health Agency’s NRC License No. 45-35423-
01 after they reported the loss of four brachytherapy seeds after a routine procedure on May 13, 
2021 (EN #55262).  The DHA is the Federal medical organization directed by Congress to 
administer and oversee the consolidated medical treatment facilities within the Department of 
Defense (DOD).  They are authorized for a wide range of materials under their broad scope medical 
license and issue authorizations to 31 locations of use throughout the DOD.  One permittee, the 
Naval Medical Center in San Diego, reported to the radiation safety officer (RSO) that on May 14, 
2021, while performing a final reconciliation of the seeds for return to the manufacturer, that four 
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REPORT DETAILS 
 

1. Organization and Scope of the Program 
 

a. Inspection Scope 
 

The inspector reviewed the organization and scope of activities performed under Defense 
Health Agency’s NRC License No. 45-35423-01.  Information was gathered through 
interviews with licensee staff, including the Radiation Safety Officer (RSO), and through 
reviews of selected records. 

 
b. Observations and Findings 

 
The DHA is a broad scope medical licensee headquartered in Falls Church, Virginia.  The 
DHA is the Federal medical organization directed by Congress to administer and oversee 
the consolidated medical treatment facilities within the Department of Defense (DOD).  
They are authorized for a wide range of materials under their broad scope medical license 
and issue authorizations to 31 locations of use throughout the DOD. 
 
The RSO for DHA’s license is a career uniformed officer who is available by telephone 
daily and onsite at the various commands as necessary.  The RSO oversees the daily 
operation of the licensed activities and chairs the Radiation Safety Committee.  He also 
ensures that DHA policy is implemented consistently throughout the 31 Commands.   

 
c. Conclusions 

 

No violations of NRC requirements were identified. 
 

2. Review of Licensed Activities 
 

a. Inspection Scope 
 

The inspector performed a remote announced reactive 
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Summary of Corrective Actions 
 

DHA’s i
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ATTACHMENT: SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
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